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KOERNER & OLENDER, P.C.
Attorneys at Law

11913 Grey Hollow Court
North Bethesda, MD 20852-5706

Tel. (301) 468-3336
Fax (301) 468-3343
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*not admitted in MD

Marlene H. Dortch, Secretary
Federal Communications Commission
The Portals, TW-A325
445 Twelfth Street, S.W.
Washington, DC 20554

Re:

	

Hendee Broadcasting, Inc.
Facility ID No. 193061
Wilmington, OH
File No. BNPL-20131021ABP

Dear Ms. Dortch:

On behalf of Grant County Broadcasters, Inc., there are transmitted herewith an original
and four (4) copies of its Reply to Opposition to Petition to Deny with respect to the above-
referenced application.

Should additional information be necessary in connection with this matter, please
communicate with this office.

Very truly yours,

Robert L. Olender
Counsel for
Grant County Broadcasters, Inc.

Cc:

	

Jeffrey Ziesmann

January 13, 2014
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Before the
Federal Communications CommissionAfd,c;I
A

	

Washington, DC 20554

In re Application of

HENDEE BROADCASTING, INC.

New Low Power FM Station,
Facility ID Number 193061
Wilmington, OH

For Construction Permit

To:

	

Office of the Secretary
Attn: Chief, Media Bureau

REPLY TO OPPOSITION TO PETITION TO DENY

Grant County Broadcasters, Incorporated, licensee of FM Station WNKR,

Williamstown, Kentucky ("WNKR"), by its attorneys, hereby replies to the Opposition to

Petition to Deny ("Opposition") in this matter filed December 31, 2013 by Hendee

Broadcasting, Inc. ("Hendee").

In its Petition to Deny the captioned application ("Petition"), WNKR proffered

evidence that operation of the facility sought by Hendee would interfere with the off-the-

air reception of WNKR by listeners of that station.1 In its Opposition, Hendee casually

dismisses the notion of such interference as "technically inconceivable" and insists that it

is deserving of a grant because it meets the mileage separation requirements of the rules.

In 2011, Educational Media Foundation ("EMF"), which has vast experience with

FM translators, filed an application for a construction permit on FM Channel 294 at

See Petition Attachments A and B.
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Middletown, Ohio, not too distant from the proposed Hendee location. Like Hendee,

EMF also met all of the mileage separation requirements, and was granted a construction

permit. Yet, when the EMF translator went on the air, there were numerous complaints

of interference to the reception of WNKR in the same area which will be served by the

proposed Hendee facility. Without even requiring WNKR to go to the FCC, EMF took

the Channel 294 facility off the air.2

Section 73.807 of the Rules3, like Section 74.1204, is a predictor of where

electrical interference is expected to occur. Applications which do not comply with those

mileage separations will not be granted. Section 74.1203 is a remediator, to address

those situations in which unexpected interference actually occurs. Where there are

instances of "unexpected" interference, the secondary service station is required to

remedy the interference or discontinue operation.. In the case of co-channel interference,

no amount of filtering can remedy the problem, so discontinuance of operation is the only

possible remedy.

As detailed in the attached Affidavit of Jeffrey Ziesmann, Station WNKR is a full

Class A FM station. Its power of 1.8 kw of power is the maximum allowed considering

the antenna height above average terrain of 185 meters. That height, together with the

nature of the terrain and the history of Channel 294 in the area allows off-air reception of

WNKR at significant distances north of the transmitter site.

2 Petition Attachment B.

47C.F,R. § 73.807.

47 C.F.R. § 74.1204.

47 C.F.R. § 74.1203,
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Not only is reception at distances specified on the map submitted with the Petition

conceivable, it actually exists, as can be attested by EMF. The listeners listed in Mr.

Ziesmann's Affidavit are those which led to EMF's decision to turn off its Channel 294

translator and seek an alternate frequency.

Hendee appears to be of the impression that the low power FM service is not the

same as the FM translator service, i.e., a secondary service.6 However, the Local

Community Radio Act of 2010 ("LCRA")7 specifically provides that FM translator

stations, FM booster stations and low-power FM stations remain equal in status and

secondary to existing and modified full-service FM stations.

Significantly, the very document cited by Hendee8 explains the requirements.

"An interfering FM translator station must remedy the interference or cease
operation. The Commission has interpreted this rule broadly. It places no
geographic or temporal limitation on complaints. It covers all types of
interference. The reception affected can be that of a fixed or mobile receiver."9

The Commission goes on to state that "We conclude that it is appropriate to

handle complaints in a manner similar to that used to handle complaints of interference

caused by FM translators."° Accordingly, Hendee's conclusion that low-power FM

stations are not secondary services and are not limited by interference to full power FM

stations under precedent set for FM translators is simply wrong.

Opposition, pp.3-4

Pub. LNo 111, 124 Stat. 4072 (2011).

Creation of a Low Power Radio Service and Amendment of Service and Eligibility Rules for FM
Broadcast Translator Stations, Fifth Order on Reconsideration and Sixth Report and Order, 27 FCC Rcd
15402 (2012) ("LPFM Sixth Report and Order").

Id. at 15431. (footnotes omitted)

° Id. at 15432
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The recent EMF experience with a Channel 294 translator makes it obvious that

operation of the proposed Hendee facility will, in fact, cause interference to the reception

of the WNKR signal. Grant of a construction permit to Hendee will do a disservice to all

concerned. If Hendee constructs the facility and begins operation, there will be

interference to reception to WNKR. Based on the EMF experience, listeners will

complain, and Hendee will have to cease operation after having spent the money to

construct. WNKR, for its part, will have to receive the listener complaints and expend

resources to bring those complaints to the attention of the Commission and Hendee. The

Commission will have expended its resources granting the construction permit and then

requiring Hendee to discontinue operation. Finally, the public, WNKR listeners, will

suffer interference for some period of time until the matter is resolved.

For the above reasons, the Commission is urged not to grant the captioned

application.

Respectfully submitted,

GRANT COUNTY BROADCASTERS,
INCORPORATED

By:

	

-/,7cc4
Robert 1. Olender
Its Attorney

Koerner & Olender, P.C.
11913 Grey Hollow Court
North Bethesda, MD 20852

(301)468-3336

January 13, 2014
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Robert L. Olender, do hereby certify that a copy of the foregoing Reply to

Opposition to Petition to Deny was served this 13th day of January, 2014, via first class

US mail upon the following:

Jeffrey D. Southmayd, Esq.
Southmayd & Miller
4 Ocean Ridge Boulevard South
Palm Coast, FL 32137

Counsel for Hendee Broadcasting, Inc.

Robert L. Olender


